Public Document Pack

Overview and
Scrutiny

Committee

Monday, 25th June,

REDDITCH BURDUGH CQUTCIL
>, A

2012

6.30 pm 3\%\‘(\ By
Committee Room Two . %@Ve/“
Town Hall A\

Redditch ‘

www.redditchbe.gov.uk



Access to Information - Your Rights

The Local Government
(Access to Information) Act
1985 widened the rights of
press and public to attend
Local Authority meetings
and to see certain
documents. Recently the
Freedom of Information Act
2000, has further broadened
these rights, and limited
exemptions under the 1985
Act.

Your main rights are set out
below:-

e Automatic right to attend
all Council and
Committee meetings
unless the business
would disclose
confidential or “exempt”
information.

e Automatic right to inspect
agenda and public reports
at least five days before
the date of the meeting.

e Automatic right to inspect
minutes of the Council
and its Committees (or
summaries of business

undertaken in private) for
up to six years following a
meeting.

e Automatic right to inspect
lists of background
papers used in the
preparation of public
reports.

e Access, upon request, to
the background papers
on which reports are
based for a period of up
to four years from the
date of the meeting.

e Access to a public
register stating the names
and addresses and
electoral areas of all
Councillors with details of
the membership of all
Committees etc.

¢ A reasonable number of
copies of agenda and
reports relating to items to
be considered in public
must be made available
to the public attending
meetings of the Council
and its Committees etc.

Access to a list specifying
those powers which the
Council has delegated to its
Officers indicating also the
titles of the Officers
concerned.

Access to a summary of the
rights of the public to attend
meetings of the Council and
its Committees etc. and to
inspect and copy
documents.

In addition, the public now
has a right to be present
when the Council
determines “Key Decisions”
unless the business would
disclose confidential or
“exempt” information.

Unless otherwise stated, all
items of business before the
Executive Committee are
Key Decisions.

(Copies of Agenda Lists are
published in advance of the
meetings on the Council’s
Website:
www.redditchbc.gov.uk

If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to
exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact

Jess Bayley and Michael Craggs
Democratic Services Officers

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: 01527 64252 (Ext. 3268 / 3267) Fax: (01527) 65216
e.mail: jess.bayley@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk /

michael.craggs@bromsgroveandredditch.qov.uk




Welcome to today’s meeting.
Guidance for the Public

Agenda Papers

The Agenda List at the front
of the Agenda summarises
the issues to be discussed
and is followed by the
Officers’ full supporting
Reports.

Chair

The Chair is responsible for
the proper conduct of the
meeting. Generally to one
side of the Chair is the
Committee Support Officer
who gives advice on the
proper conduct of the
meeting and ensures that
the debate and the
decisions are properly
recorded. On the Chair’s
other side are the relevant
Council Officers. The
Councillors (“Members”) of
the Committee occupy the
remaining seats around the
table.

Running Order

ltems will normally be taken
in the order printed but, in
particular circumstances, the
Chair may agree to vary the
order.

Refreshments : tea, coffee
and water are normally
available at meetings -
please serve yourself.

Decisions

Decisions at the meeting will
be taken by the Councillors
who are the democratically
elected representatives.
They are advised by
Officers who are paid
professionals and do not
have a vote.

Members of the Public

Members of the public may,
by prior arrangement, speak
at meetings of the Council or
its Committees. Specific
procedures exist for Appeals
Hearings or for meetings
involving Licence or
Planning Applications. For
further information on this
point, please speak to the
Committee Support Officer.

Special Arrangements

If you have any particular
needs, please contact the
Committee Support Officer.

Infra-red devices for the
hearing impaired are
available on request at the
meeting. Other facilities may
require prior arrangement.

Further Information

If you require any further
information, please contact
the Committee Support
Officer (see foot of page
opposite).

Fire/ Emergency
instructions

If the alarm is sounded,
please leave the building
by the nearest available
exit — these are clearly
indicated within all the
Committee Rooms.

If you discover a fire,
inform a member of staff
or operate the nearest
alarm call point (wall
mounted red rectangular
box). In the event of the
fire alarm sounding, leave
the building immediately
following the fire exit
signs. Officers have been
appointed with
responsibility to ensure
that all visitors are
escorted from the
building.

Do Not stop to collect
personal belongings.

Do Not use lifts.

Do Not re-enter the
building until told to do
SO.

The emergency

Assembly Areais on
Walter Stranz Square.




Declaration of Interests:
Guidance for Councillors

DO | HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ?

o Where the item relates or is likely to affect your registered interests
(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests)
OR

o Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your
own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more
than most other people affected by the issue,

you have a personal interest.

WHAT MUST | DO? Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay

o The declaration must relate to specific business being decided -
a general scattergun approach is not needed

o Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public
body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter.

. You can vote on the matter.

IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ?

In general only if:-

o It is a personal interest and

o The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your
family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups)
and

o A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the
interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

WHAT MUST | DO? Declare and Withdraw

BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee).



REDDITGH BORQUGH COUNCIL
=—— I

Scrutiny

;Nww.redditchbc.gov.uk Committee

Overview and

Monday, 25th June, 2012
6.30 pm
Committee Room 2 Town Hall

Agenda Membership:
Clirs: Juliet Brunner Andrew Fry
(Chair) Pattie Hill
Simon Chalk (Vice-  Gay Hopkins
Chair) Pat Witherspoon
Andrew Brazier
David Bush
John Fisher
1. Apologies and named To receive apologies for absence and details of any

substitutes

Councillor (or co-optee substitute) nominated to attend this
meeting in place of a member of this Committee.

2. Declarations of interest To invite Councillors to declare any interest they may have in
and of Party Whip items on the Agenda and any Party Whip.
3. Medium Term Financial To complete pre-decision scrutiny of the proposed revisions

Plan - Pre-Scrutiny
(Pages 1 - 8)

J Pickering - Exec Director
(Finance and Corporate
Resources)

to the Medium Term Financial Plan 2012/13 — 2014/15.

Consideration of this item at a special additional meeting of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been organised,
following consideration of the report at a meeting of the
Committee on Tuesday 19th June. Consideration of this item
at an extra meeting will provide the Committee with an
opportunity to consider and report recommendations through
pre-decision scrutiny to the Executive Committee, which is
due to consider this item on 26th June 2012.

(Report attached — this report was previously published in the
agenda pack for the 19th June 2012 meeting of the
Committee. However, an additional copy has been
published in this pack for Members’ consideration).

(No Specific Ward Relevance);



Overview and Scrutiny

Committee

Monday, 25th June, 2012

4,

Exclusion of the Press
and Public

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Borough
Director, during the course of the meeting to consider
excluding the public from the meeting on the grounds that
exempt information is likely to be divulged, it may be
necessary to move the following resolution:

“That, under S.100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule
12 (A) of the said Act”.

These paragraphs are as follows:
Subiject to the “public interest” test, information relating to:

e Para 1 —any individual;

e Para 2 — the identity of any individual;

e Para 3 —financial or business affairs:

e Para 4 - labour relations matters;

e Para 5 - legal professional privilege;

e Para 6 — anotice, order or direction;

e Para 7 — the prevention, investigation or

prosecution of crime:

and may need to be considered as ‘exempt’.




Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012
REVISIONS TO THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2012/13 — 2014/15
Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Phil Mould, Portfolio Holder
for Corporate Management
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas,
Head of Finance and Resources
Wards Affected All Wards / None specific
Ward Councillor Consulted N/A
Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

To enable Members to note the proposed revisions to the Medium
Term Financial Plan and to recommend approval to the Executive
Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is requested to RECOMMEND that

1) the revisions to the Medium Term Financial Plan be approved
together with the required virements as detailed at 3.7.2.;

2) the scheme identified at 3.7.1 be reduced to £200k and this be
amended within the Council’s Capital Programme 2012/13;

3) that £67k be returned to balances in 2012/13;

4) approval to use the General Power of Competence be granted
to enable the service to be provided;

5) Officers continue to work with colleagues and external
partners to ensure the proposed service changes can be
implemented as soon as practicable; and

RESOLVE that

the report be noted.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan was approved by Members in
February 2012 with a 0% increase in Council Tax.



Page 2
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012
3.2  Following change of political control following Council elections in May

3.3

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

2012 and as a result of discussions at Council on 21%' May 2012.
Members have requested Officers assess the funding implications of a
number of changes to the original budget as currently approved and to
advise Members of the financial impact of these changes. The
revisions are to be funded by virement and return of funds to balances
to ensure that there is no impact on the 2012/13 Council Tax
requirement as approved within the statutory deadline.

The additional services to be considered for funding include;
. Free Swimming for under 16s and over 60s
. Pre 9.30 concessionary Bus Travel
. Additional Apprentice position

Free Swimming for under 16’s and over 60’s

Officers have reviewed the potential of granting free swimming
sessions to Redditch residents who are under 16 or over 60. All public
sessions would be available for free entrance. It is anticipated that by
granting free swimming to those eligible the benefits will include:

. Increased participation in physical activity across the Town

. Encouragement for young children to learn to swim. This is
important as swimming is a life skill and can also save lives,
should children fall into open water.

) The aim to address health inequalities in the Town, and
offers an incentive to prevent residents from smoking and
drinking excessively, thus reducing risks of heart disease,
diabetes and other serious illnesses

. Breaking down the cost barrier for individuals and families on
low incomes

. Encouraging residents to use our Sports facilities thus
encouraging them to participate in other activities and
increase secondary sources of income such as the purchase
of Reddicards

. supporting the schools objective of teaching children to swim
as part of the curriculum

Previously free swimming was funded with a £140m Central
Government initiative. It was introduced in Redditch in April 2009 for a
16 month period, ending in August 2010. This resulted in significant
increase in swimming particularly for Under 16 year olds, where
swimming usage compared with the previous year 2008/9, increased
by 53%.



Page 3
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012
3.4.3 Following the opening of the Abbey Stadium facility officers have

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.4

3.6

3.6.1

reviewed the usage of the pool and estimated the potential cost
associated with free swimming. Based on the estimated additional
number of users within the facility it is anticipated that the additional
cost would be £71k per annum This reflects the loss of income together
with an assessment of annual costs relating to additional staffing and
increased maintenance required for the facility. It is anticipated that the
service will require funding for approximately 8 months ( £47k) for
2012/13 to reflect the period of approval and implementation.

Pre 9.30 Concessionary Bus Travel

The contract for all concessionary bus travel is now held with
Worcestershire County Council and there are currently no concessions
for pre 9.30 travel across the County. Officers are in discussion with
County Transport colleagues to identify the contractual arrangements
that need to be in place to enable our eligible residents to benefit from
pre 9.30am concessionary travel.

The anticipated cost associated with the enhanced provision is £86k
per annum. This is dependant on County negotiating the contract with
the bus companies and the ability to use County passes for our eligible
residents.

It is assumed that there will be a period of contractual discussion
implementation following member approval with an estimated cost of
£43k required for funding in 2012/13. This cost may reduce depending
on the time required to implement the service.

The Localism Act includes a General Power of Competence which
repeals the well-being powers in the Local Government Act 2000 as far
as they relate to England. The power for local authorities equates to
those of an ‘individual with full capacity’, and the only limits or
restrictions placed on the power are statutory. The provision of
discretionary travel can be provided within these powers.

Additional Apprentice Position

The Authority currently funds 4 apprentice posts within different roles. It
is proposed that a further post be created to be trained to undertake
the PAT ( electrical testing) for the Council. The trainee would work
alongside a qualified electrician and would undertake a formal training
programme. The cost of the new post would be £8k which could be
more than offset by the current contract for PAT testing of £30k.
Officers are currently working with County colleagues to review the



Page 4
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012

3.7

3.7.1

contractual arrangement currently in place. This will include an
assessment of the training required and a risk assessment to ensure
the staff and assets are suitably protected. Any costs associated with
the transition to the new arrangements will have to be covered by

balances.

Savings to fund budget proposals

It is proposed that a number of budgets be reduced to provide the
funding required for the services as identified above. The reductions to
revenue budgets 2012/13 —2014/15 include :

Reduction in consultancy budget of £89k. This budget is
utilised to call on additional professional support and advice
when required. The majority of the budget (£65k) relates to
the local plan enquiry that has to be undertaken by external
advisors. It is proposed that this budget be transferred to
fund the new proposals and any requests for consultancy
support be presented to Executive Committee and Council to
be funded from balances during the year. The £65k budget is
only available for 2012/13 and further savings will have to be
made in future years.

The provision of Redditch Matters by online publication to
save the budget of £17k. The current production does not
raise enough advertising revenue to support the costs and
therefore an online edition is to be trialed in July 2012. It is
anticipated that any revenue gained in the future can be
used to improve access and marketing of the online
publication.

Removal of the budget for the Leisure options appraisal to
save £15k. Members have requested that officers look at
alternative ways to support the leisure developments in the
future. This is a one year budget allocation (2012/13) and
therefore additional savings will have to be delivered to
enable the proposed services to be continued.

Reduction of the advertising budget by £10k. Officers will
continue to consider all opportunities for online advertising
with the aim to target customers with information on events
and leisure facilities.

Reduction by £50k of the funding for the capital repairs of
public buildings. This will leave a budget of £200k and will
save £2k of revenue costs. In addition officers have



Page 5
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012

confirmed a reduction in the capital costs for the currently
approved schemes to provide security fencing at the depot
(reduce by £10k) and to improve the footpaths in Morton
Stanley Park ( reduce by £12k). Therefore the borrowing
costs which are funded by revenue will reduce by a further
£2k.

3.7.2 ltis proposed that virements be actioned in 2012/13 to support the new
services. In addition the proposed savings will deliver a return of £67k
to balances in 2012/13. The table below represents the revised
funding allocations.

£'000
Services to be provided:
Free Swimming ( under 16 & over 60) 47
Pre 9.30 Concessionary Travel 43
Apprentice post 8
Total Cost 98
Funded by :
Reduction consultancy budget 89
Removal of Leisure option appraisal funding 15
Provide Redditch Matters online 17
Reduction in advertising budget 10
Removal of PAT Testing budget 30
Reduction of capital schemes — saving on
revenue borrowing costs 4
Total Savings 165
Net return to balances 67

3.8 Impact on Medium Term Financial Plan to 2014/15

3.8.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan 2012/13 —2014/15 as approved in
February 2012 included a number of savings that had to be achieved to
ensure a balanced budget would be delivered over the 3 year period.
The proposed revisions to the plan will reduce the current requirement
for a transfer from balances of £259k to £192k. This £67k will therefore
increase the current level of balances.



Page 6
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012
3.8.2 In2013/14 £192k is the revised initial shortfall that has to funded from

3.8.3

3.8.4

3.8.5

3.8.6

savings. In addition there is an assumed cut in Government Grant of
£211k, incremental pay increases to staff and the increase in pension
contributions from the employer. The full year effect of the proposed
revisions to budget currently funded from one-off budget allocations will
have to be met of £80k. This results in a shortfall of £706k for 2013/14.

In 2014/15 the shortfall of £344k is mainly due to an assumption of a
further 5% cut in Government Grant, additional % increase for
superannuation and the incremental increases for employees.

The savings to be delivered over the 3 year financial plan are :

2012/13 £192k (to be funded from balances)
2013/14 £706k
2014/15 £344k

This does not take into account any additional costs relating to the
changes to Council Tax benefit or other welfare changes which may
require additional funding from the Borough.

Balances are currently £1.160m. With the reduced requirement of
release in 2012/13 of £192k to meet the revised budget requirement in
2012/13 the Council will be left with £968k to meet future one off
commitments. The prudent level of balances to be held for an
organisation the size of Redditch Borough Council is £750k.

Leqgal Implications

3.9

The Council has a statutory responsibility to set a balanced budget and
a Council Tax for each financial year. The proposed amendments to
the budget do not change the Council Tax levels or the total budget
requirement and therefore can be proposed as virements during
2012/13.

Service / Operational Implications

3.10

The proposed changes to service provision as detailed above will have
a number of operational implications to include:

e Ensuring access is limited to eligible residents who are under
16 and over 60. Officers are currently considering the most
effective way to achieve this in line with the previous system.

e Ensuring access is avaliable for the pre 9.30am bus travel.
Officers are working with County colleagues and JMP



Page 7
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE 19" June 2012

3.11

4.1

4.2

transport advisors to ensure the contractual arrangements
are in place for implementation of the scheme.

e Redditch Matters online publication. The trial in July will be
monitored and actively marketed with partners to ensure
access is available and that our residents are aware of the
new publication.

e Reduction in advertising and capital programme bids.
Officers will consider alternative advertising opportunities
and ensure risks associated with the reduction in capital bids
be mitigated.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

The additional services will provide greater access to Council
swimming facilities for the young and over 60s which as detailed in the
report should improve the health and well being of our residents.
Discretionary transport will ensure that eligible residents can access
services at a time convenient to them.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Officers have considered the risks associated with the proposed
changes and will look to mitigate the following risks identified:

Reduction in capital programme for Public Building repairs to
£200k:
e Risk —deterioration of public buildings and additional costs
associated with inability to repair when required.

o Mitigation — officers to work with County colleagues (
property services) to assess priority works to ensure
these are undertaken with budget allocated and therefore
mitigate the risk as identified above..

APPENDICES

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Medium Term Financial plan — supporting documents

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Jayne Pickering
Executive Director — Finance and Resources
i.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

01527-881207



Page 8



	Agenda
	3 Medium Term Financial Plan - Pre-Scrutiny

